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ADDENDUM #2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please mark all proposal submission 
Envelopes with the following information 

 

Sealed RFP # L192005    
Due on September 27, 2019 no later than 2:00 PM, MST 

 
 



The RFP due date has been extended to September 27, 2019 at 2:00PM MST. 
 
The following questions were received by the close of the Technical Questions/Inquiries 
due date of September 12, 2019 at 12:00PM/MST: 
 

1. Line 7 - Could you please expand on the definition of ‘processing queue’ in the 
given context? 

a. If we upload 20 videos there is like some sort of queue for re-encoding at 
various levels. How do we understand if a file is stuck during the re-
encode process or how many are waiting in line? ETA of a file being 
finished. 

 
2. Line 58 - What is the intended usage of the api token or key?  

a. If individual colleges or power users wanted to leverage your APIs to 
improve their workflows, what is the process for them to be able to create 
a token that allows them to connect from their servers to yours for 
automating work? Are all integrations approved by admins and they hand 
out the keys or does each user have a key for their own account allowing 
them to access the APIs that their permissions have access to? Are there 
ways for Admins to turn on permissions for each API for each token/key 
that exists?  

 
3. The RFP mentions you have experience with several systems over the past 

decade. How are you currently storing & Managing all of your assets? And what 
platforms will you migrate your assets from to the new DAM? 

a. AEM is probably our largest. Assume thousands of files stored in dozens 
of locations and dozens of power users. What are the available processes 
for us to bulk import content?  

 
4. What are the pain points and negative business impact associated with this 

current solution?  
a. Complexity for end users and admins cost. 

 
5. How any assets do you currently have and what does your annual growth look 

like? 
a. 20,000 assets with 20 terabytes of space. Annual growth for a successful 

solution would continue to be several thousand artifacts a year and 2-5 
terabytes.  

 
6. Who is your SSO provider? Are they SAML 2.0 compliant?  

a. Shibboleth and SAML 2.0 
 

7. How much of the 10 TB do you anticipate being raw video?  
a. Most 

 



8. How many Advanced Adobe CC plugins are you seeking? This is a bi directional 
synch with the DAM that works with Illustrator, Photoshop & InDesign. 

a. We hope for several related to photo and video. No preset number though.  
 

9. Please describe how many Adobe CC seats for creatives do you have today? 
a. Creatives is around 200 spread across the university today. Expected to 

grow significantly as this service becomes stable and available. 
 

10. How are you defying creators. Are those people who will be consistently 
uploading assets to the DAM? 

a. Yes. Those that upload are Creators/Creatives.  
 

11. The current format of the RFP does not provide a vendor the ability to determine 
if their solution is a good fit or not. We work on many RFPs every month and find 
it very challenging to respond without enough context. Please explain in detail 
each use-case, workflow or user story how various DAM features requested will 
be used by various roles at the university. 

a. Please review the supplemental questions. The features speak to the use 
cases we have.  

 
12. Are the compliance standard mentioned in the attachment A, must have for a 

vendor? 
a. We don’t expect any vendor to have a positive answer to every question. 

They are meant to help us understand how your company approaches the 
Criteria. If a question is not applicable to your products then please just 
say not Applicable. The criteria are Asset Sharing, App Extension 
(Integrations), Metadata, Assets, System, Price, University Items (Security 
and Hosting), and Accessibility. 

 
13. Please describe the various creative apps and the workflows you use today for 

content creation such as Adobe PS, Cinema4D etc? 
a. Our campus units each have their own unique content creation workflow 

(though there is sometimes overlap), so documenting those at this stage 
of the RFP is difficult to do. Regarding creative applications, each team 
has a different set of applications they use, but they consist of some 
combination of the following: 

i. Adobe Illustrator 
ii. Adobe Photoshop 
iii. Adobe Lightroom 
iv. Adobe Bridge 
v. Adobe InDesign 
vi. Adobe Premiere 
vii. Adobe After Effects 
viii. Final Cut Pro 

 



14. Can we do a vendor remote office hour to go over the requirements and 
clarifications? We see that as a common trend in RFP process these days? 
 

a. No. 
 

15. Do you already have a DAM solution that you might be considering for expansion 
or if this a green field opportunity with no legacy DAM? 

a. There are several legacy DAMs across campus.  
 

16. Can you prioritize the requirements you have listed in the generic excel sheet? 
Out of 100+ requirements listed what are the priorities on these? In our 
experience without prioritization (Must Have, Nice to have etc.) it is hard for a 
vendor to do justice as each of these requirements could take 4-5 slides or 
several pages to highlight the capabilities so that you can make a informed 
decision. This process takes us 2-3 weeks. 

a. We don’t expect any vendor to positively answer ever question. We are 
looking for these questions to inform our understanding of what is possible 
for each Criteria.  

 
17. Have you already seen demos by any of the DAM vendors? 

a. University wide we have exposure to many DAM vendors and we have a 
good sized committee to represent these experiences.  

 
18. 1Are you planning to ingest high-res videos in the DAM as well? If so, please list 

the file formats & codec requirements, also specify the volume of ingest? 
a. Yes, we are planning to ingest high-res videos into the DAM. The initial 

video ingestion is likely to be in the range of 15 – 20 TB, but will grow over 
time as early adopters bring in additional video assets, and as additional 
campus units adopt the DAM solution. The file formats & codecs required 
are: 

i. File Formats:  
1. MKV 
2. MXF 
3. MOV 
4. MP4 

ii. Codecs: 
1. ProRes 
2. HEVC 
3. AVC 
4. AVC-Intra 50 
5. AVC-Intra 100 
6. AVC-Long GOP 
7. XAVC 
8. DVCPRO 
9. DVCPRO HD 
10. XDCAM EX 



11. XDCAM HD 
12. BMRaw 

 
19. Do you have an internal high-performance SAN or NAS already provisioned for 

storing high-res video files? 
 

a. Not at this time, but we have interest in leveraging these technologies if 
your system provides integrations to them.  

 
20. Do you need to ingest/download from field or remote users large files? If so, what 

are the typical sizes of large files? What are the file formats for these? 
a. Yes. File sizes get into the gigs. 

 
21. What are the collaboration workflow requirements between creative services and 

marketing? 
a. These are best answered through the sharing of asset questions and the 

workflow features.  
 

22. For each integration (SalesForce, LMS) listed can you describe in detail the 
workflow desired? 

a. We stayed general on purpose to understand what you offer out of the box 
for Salesforce. If you have completed past projects with Salesforce then 
please describe them and any additional costs to complete them that we 
would encur.  

 
23. Is there an approved budget for this project? Is this in 2019 budget? When would 

a decision be made for a vendor selection? 
a. Decision would be made November 2019. Contract to start in December 

2019.  
 

24. Given the effort needed to work on an RFP of this magnitude, we would like to 
receive feedback positive or negative based on your decision. Would you be 
willing to provide via email a written summary? 

a. Yes, we understand companies spend tremendous resources to submit to 
RFPs. We are always happy to walk through what we learned and what 
happened during the evaluation process.  

 
25. In one of the questions - "If a file is shared and it has contingencies what 

happens? For instance, an HTML file is shared, but it references CSS or 
JavaScript files. Is the sharer alerted, are the automatically included in the share, 
does something else happen?" Are you looking for a CMS or a DAM? 
HTML/CSS is not typically managed in a DAM. Please send us a full list of file or 
asset types you expect to manage in the DAM. 

a. We don’t expect every vendor to say yes to every question. If HTML is not 
something you are expecting to deal with or have features for in your 
system then just say it does not apply to your products.  



 
26. As per our company policy we do not share references during the preliminary 

stage of the RFP. If we are the finalists we will be happy to do so. Is that a show 
stopper? 
 
Please section 5.5 of the RFP, references are required with your RFP 
submission, however, only finalist references will be contacted. 
 

27. Can you explain why a paper copy is needed? Why is an electronic response not 
acceptable as is common with RFP these days? 
 
Please follow the instructions within section 3.8 of the RFP for submittal.  
 

28. In order to give a concrete financial proposal please provide the following details: 
a. Number of creative/desktop users (such as Adobe CC editors) 

i. 200 hundred in year 1, but could easily grow to 1,000 by the end of 
the contract.  

b. Number of general web based users for downloading, searching, browsing 
content 

i. 65,000 people hold our single sign on credentials each year. We 
hope the solution would allow all of them to search, browse, and 
use content they find.  

c. Number of collaborative users needing to review & approve content 
i. Less than 100 in year 1, but could be up to 2-300 by end of 

contract.  
d. Total disk space for current asset volumes across all storage silos that will 

need to be migrated to the cloud DAM 
i. ~20 Terabytes to migrate. 2-5 more each year for growth during the 

life of the contract.  
 

29. Role Based Supporting Question: Our solution’s security model allows the 
creation of tailored security roles during the implementation phase.  Do we fill in 
the “Role Based Supporting Questions” tab with our understanding of the roles, 
or should we mark the items that can be configured or not? 

a. I would make note that your Roles are highly configurable and that they 
are all custom built and then answer the questions assuming the persona 
of an average implied role.  

 
30. University Items: We will also want to confirm all functionality you have listed.  

Please provide 3 admin accounts, 5 Department Head Accounts, 10 Creator 
accounts, and 10 Logged In Viewer Accounts.  We will want the ability to upload 
content, please let us know if there are file restrictions on these accounts.” 
(Column 54) 

a. Question: In which phase of the evaluation process is this required?  For a 
Proof of Concept, we require 2-3 use cases and a day of onsite training, in 
addition to user accounts. 



i. Depending on the complexity of an answer in the written portions 
we may need to log in and confirm it during the first round. We 
recommend you find a way to achieve this through your proposal. 
Final round can have onsite or full remote meetings. Vendor’s 
choice as it makes no difference to us if you want to fly to Tucson 
or assist us through an online meeting tool.  

 
End of addendum, all else remains the same. 
 


